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The Company announces that, further to a meeting of the Board of Directors held on the 29" of
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have been approved.
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Directors’ report
Year ended 31 December 2010

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the group and
holding company for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal activities
The group is engaged in the operations of McDonald's restaurants in Malta, Latvia, Estonia

and Lithuania.

The company acts as an investment company and service provider to its subsidiary
undertakings.

Performance review

During the year under review, the group registered an operating profit of Ew2, 150,436
(2009 — Euwr2,798,156) on revenue of Eur5l,695,336 (2009 — Eur52,144,859). After
accounting for investment income and finance costs, the group registered a pre-tax profit of

Eur378,553 (2009 — Eurl,713,220).

The group's net assets for the year under review amounted to Ewrl4,121,730 (2009 -
Eurl6,623,639).

During the year under review, the company registered an operating loss of Ewr3/,355 (2009
(profit) — Ewr373,502). After accounting for investment income and fnance costs, the
company registered a pre-tax profit of EurS5, 208,248 (2009 —Eur225,103). The net assets of
the company at the end of the year under review amounted to Ewrl5,472,379 (2009 —

Euri3,287,051).

In April 2010 the company raised Fur25,000,000 by issuing bonds to the public in order to
expand its operations. In accordance with the prospectus, part of the proceeds raised have
been utilised to part-refinance the group’s existing bank debt and fund its investment

strategy.

The group continued to expand its portfolio of restaurants and remodelling of existing
restaurants. It has opened four new restaurants in 2010 (Estonia: 3; Latvia: 1), with an
additional drive-thru which opened in early January 2011 in Lithuania. Furthermore, the
group has secured title on three additional sites in Latvia which will be developed as three
drive-thrus, and which are anticipated to open by summer 2011. As a result, the portfolio of
restaurants for 2010 has been increased to thirty four. Taking into consideration the opening
in Lithuania in early January and the three new sites in Latvia, the group will further
increase the portfolio to thirty eight restaurants by 2011. During the financial year under
review, the group has remodelled five restaurants (Estonia: 2; Latvia: 1; Lithuania: 1; Malta:
1). As a result, the group’s has achieved the objectives of expansion and development for the
financial year under review,




Premier Capital p.l.c.

Directors’ report (confinued)
Year ended 31 December 2010

As new restaurants were cpened during the vear, these restaurants did aot contribute a full
operating year to the revenue of the group and thus affected operating performance.
Furthermore, the Baltic economies underperformed during the first six months, and although
they started recovering in the second half of the year, this was gradual. Due 10 the increase in
capital expenditure the depreciation charge increased significanily over 2009. The group
also suffered a significant increase in utility costs. The group’s EBFTDA dropped slightly
from Eur5, 543,824 in 2009 to 15,430,957 in 2016, An increase [n finance cosis was
incurred as a resull of the issuance in Apnil 2010 of Euwr25 080,008 in bonds. Although, these
factors affected negatively the Gnaneial results, the group performed strongly in other arcas
namely i the Mallese secfor, and also throuph improvements in pross prolit (2070 - 65.94%,
2009 — £3.06%4) over 2009,

1l is expected that in 2011 the performance will imgrove due to the continued recovery of Lthe
economics of the Baltic countries, strong performance of the Mallese operation and a full
year of contribution from the revenue generaled by the new testaurants.

Results and dividends
The results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are shown in the statements of

comprehensive come on page ten. The group’s loss for the year alier laxalion was
Eur631,772 {2008 (profit) - FEarl, 048 590), whilst the company’s profit for the vear after
taxation was fur3, 185,328 (2000 - Eur68 9150 An inlerim dividend of Fuef, 500,000 was
declared and paid during 2010, The directors do nol recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

Direciors
The directors who served during the period were:

Marin Hili {Chairman)

Carmelo Hili (sive) Melo (Chiel’ Execitive Officer)
Toseph BT (sive) Beppe

Richard Abdilla Castillo

Charles ). Farrugia (appointed: 24 February 2010)
Jesmond Mizzi (appointed 24 February 2010)

In accordance with the company’s articles of association all the directors are to remait in
olTice,




Premier Capital p.l.c.

Directors’ report (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2010

Going Concern

Afier reviewing the group’s and company’s budget for the next financial year, and other
longer term plans, the directors are satisfied that, at the time of approving the financial
statements, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial

statements.

Auditors
Following an internal restructuring of the Deloitte Malta firm, a resolution to appoint

Deloitte Audit Limited, a company forming part of the same firm in Malta, will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting,

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf on 29 April 2011 by:

9, — /N
o . N it . . ; .
Makin Hili Melo Hili

Chairman Chief Executive Officer




Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are required by the Companies Act (Chap. 386) to prepare financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and its group at the end of
each financial year and of the profit or loss of the company and its group for the year then
ended. In preparing the financial statements, the directors should:

m select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable; and

u prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company and the group will continue in business as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and the
group and which enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act (Chap. 386). This responsibilily includes designing, implementing and
maintaining such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities.

Statement of responsibility pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Listing
Authority

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

a. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the company and its group as at 31 December 2010
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;
and

b. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Directors’ report includes a fair review of
the performance of the business and the position of the Issuer and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

-

V.
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| Melo Hiti 1 \
Chief Executive Officer
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement

Introduction

Pursuant to the Listing Rules as issued by the Listing Authority of the Malta Financial
Services Authority, Premier Capital p.l.c (the ‘Company’) is hereby reporting on the extent
of its adoption of the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance (the ‘Principles’)
contained in the Listing Rules.

The board acknowledges that the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory rules but
recommends principles of good practice. Monetheless, the Board strongly believes that the
Principles are in the best interest of the shareholders and investors since they ensure that the
Directors, Management and employees of the group adhere to internationally recognised
high standards of Corporate Governance.

The group currently has a corporate decision-making and supervisory structure that is
tailored to suit the group’s requirements and designed to ensure the existence of adequate
checks and balances within the group, whilst retaining an element of flexibility, particularly
in view of the size of the group and the nature of the its business. The group adheres to the
Principles, except for those instances where there exist particular circumstances that warrant
non-adherence thereto, or at least postponement for the time being.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall long-term direction of the group, in
particular in being actively involved in overseeing the systems of control and financial
reporting and that the group communicates effectively with the market.

The Board of Directors meets regularly, with a minimum of four times annually, and is
currently composed of six Members, two of which are completely independent from the
Company or any other related companies,

Executive Director
Mr. Carmelo sive Melo Hili (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr Marin Hili (Chairman)

Mr Joseph sive Beppe Hili

Mr Richard Abdilla Castillo

Mr Jesmond Mizzi (appointed 24 February 2010)

Mr Charles J. Farrugia (appointed 24 February 2010)




Premier Capital p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement

The Board Meetings are attended to by the Chief Financial Officer of the group in order for
the Board to have direct access to the financial operation of the group. This is intended to,
inter alia, ensure that the policies and strategies adopted by the Board are effectively
implemented.

Audit Committee

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, which were approved by the Listing
Authority of the Malta Financial Services Authority, are modelled on the principles set out
in the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its supervisory and
monitoring responsibility by reviewing the financial statements and disclosures, the system
of internal control established by management as well as the audit processes.

The Board of Directors established the Audit Committee, which is currently composed of
the following individuals:

Mr Jesmond Mizzi (Chairman)
Mr Carmelo sive Melo Hili
Mr Charles J. Farrugia

Mr Jesmond Mizzi and Mr Charles Farrugia are both independent non-executive directors of
the Company who the Board consider to be competent in accounting and/or auditing in
terms of the Listing Rules.

The Chief Financial Officer of the group is also present during the Audit Committee
meetings.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2010. However, communication with
and between the Secretary, top level management and the Committee is ongoing and
considerations that required the Committee's attention were acted upon between meetings
and decided by the Members (where necessary) through electronic circulation and
correspondence.

Internal Control

Whilst the Board is ultimately responsible for the group’s internal controls as well as their
effectiveness, authority to operate the group is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer. The
group’s system of internal controls is designed to manage all the risks in the most
appropriate manner. However, such controls cannot provide an absolute elimination of all
business risks or losses. Therefore, the Board, inter afia, reviews the effectiveness of the
group’s system of internal controls in the following manner:

I. Reviewing the group’s strategy on an on-going basis as well as setting the
appropriate business objectives in order to enhance value for all stakeholders;

2. Implementing an appropriate organisational structure for planning, executing,
controlling and monitoring business operations in order to achieve group objectives;




Premier Capital p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement

Internal Control (continued)

3. Appointing and monitoring the Chief Executive Officer whose function is to
manage the operations of the group; and
4. Identifying and ensuring that significant risks are managed satisfactorily.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Board is mindful of and seeks to adhere to sound principles of Corporate Social
Responsibility in their daily management practices, which is also extended throughout the
Company’s subsidiary companies. There is continuing commitment to behave ethically at all
times at the same time as contributing to economic development whilst improving the
quality of life of the work force and their [amilies together with the local community and
society at large.

The subsidiary companies in Malta, Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia organise an annual
‘McHappy Day' whereby events are organised and funds collected which will then be
passed on to a local charity.

The local subsidiary, Premier Restaurants Malta Limited assists annually in the Olympic
day run with the aim of promoting physical activity, and during which a donation is
presented to the Malta Olympic committee. In addition to the above, the subsidiary
contributes additional funds for each meal sold and also provides constant support to child
institutions and hospitals through the provision of free meals and toys.

In 2007, the group helped set up the Latvia chapter of RMHC (Ronald McDonald House
Charity). The charity is represented in fifty one countries and is responsible for providing
grants and services to children well-being programs around the world. In 2010 the Latvia
chapter of RMHC provided a Ronald McDonald Care Mobile which tours the country
providing medical services to children in poorly served areas.

In carrying on its business, the group is fully aware of its obligation to preserving the

environment and has, in fact, put in place a number of policies aimed al respecting the
environment and reducing waste.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf on 29 April 2011 by:

-

B e /\ "\ .a/ _.vj
: ) Y i) )
\
n Hili | Meto Hiti ]
Chairman Chief Executive Officer




Deloitte.

Deloitie

Certified Public Accountants
Deloitte Place

Mriehel Bypass

Mriehel BKR 3000

Malla

Tel: 4356 2343 2000, 2134 S000
Fax: +356 2133 2606, 2133 5394
info@deloitte.com.mt
www.deloitte comimt
Val Reg No: MT 130 BO06
Independent auditor’s report on corporate governance
to the members of

Premier Capital p.l.c.

Pursuant to Listing Authority Listing Rules 5.94 and 5.97 issued by the Malta Financial
Services Authority, the directors are required to include in their annual financial report a
Corporate Governance Statement to the extent to which they have adopted the Code of
Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures that they have taken to
ensure compliance with these principles.

Our responsibility is laid down by Listing Rule 5.98, which requires us to include a report
on the Corporate Governance Statement.

We read the Corporate Governance Statement and consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

We are not required to perform additional work necessary to, and we do not, express an
opinion on the effectiveness of either the company’s or the group’s system of internal
control or its corporate governance procedures,

In our opinion, the Corporate governance statement set out on pages six to eight has been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of Listing Rules 5.94 and 5.97.

(e {”

Paul Darmanin as Principal
in the name and on behalf of

DELOITTE
Registered auditor

29 April 2011

Tha firm, & endl parimersiips comstruted between lenlied labdsy companies, 1 authormed o prowdde sudi and Actounzancy senaces in terms af the Accountancy Fradession Act
A fist of the corporate parmers, a1 well a3 the pringipals suthorised 1 5ign 2 report on Deball of the firm i sealable at
Didoatho Place, Mrered Bypads, Ml Maia

Membier of Delaitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 9



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statements of comprehensiva income
Year endexf 31 Decamber 2010

Group Holding
Nofas 2010 2009 210 2609
Eur Eur Eur Eur

Continuing vperations
Revenue 51,605,336 52,144 858 - -
Cosf of zales {17,609,386) (18,219,538) - -
Grass praiil 34,085 980 33,925.329 . -
Cther operating income i 655,678 384,950 1,644,782 1,700,241
Distribution expenses {27,637,260) (25967 416} - -
Adminisiralive expenses {5,053,938) {4,544 728) {1,678,137) (1,126,738}
Operating profitiioes) 2,180,436 2,798,156 {31,365) B73,502
Iwesimenl income 7 421,121 53,605 7,827,343 708,712
Finance Costs & (2,193,004  {1,138,541) (2,582,740 §1,087 111}
Profil before lax g 278,553 1713220 5,208,248 225108
Income tax expenge 13 (1,030,325} (G664, G30) {2,022,820} (137,043)
(Lossyprofit for the year
from continuing operations (861,772) +,0048,580 3,185,228 84,058
Dlzscontinued operations
Loss forthe yaar
fram discealinued
operations, net of tax iz - - - §25,143)
(Loss¥profit for the year {661,772) 1,045,590 3,185,328 658,815
Total comprehansive
{expenselincome for the year {651,772} 1,048,220 3,185,328 58,915
Altritrlable to
Owners of the company (1,117,836) 875,928
Nan conlinlling interesls wi are
also owners of the company 173,354 53,837
Other non conlrolling inleresis 282,810 07,827

{Gb1,77Z) 1.043,520

10



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statements of financial position
31 December 2010

Group Holding
Molas 2014 #0049 201} 2009

Eur Eur Eur Eur
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Nop-cument assels
Goodwill 14,606,995 14 806,998 - -
Inangibie assets 18 10,900,645 11,545,855 40,367 518 10 877,694
Properly, plant and equipment 16 27,417,680 19,203,260 42927 5017
Investment in subsidiaries 18 - - 24,469,174 21.719472
Loans and recaivables i8 - - 13,824 865 3,500 644
Deferred lax assets 17 1,843,882 2,607 647 1,767,789 2607 647
Prepayments 9 458,910 487 288 - .

£5,228,136 48,451,147 50,542 594 38,818,174

Current assats

Inventonas 20 1,167,192 1,138,841 - -
Loans 3nd receivables 18 1,282,468 489,765 2,214,882 483 765
Trade and olher receivables 2t 4,884 855 1,731,185 3,885,852 1,207,739
Cuirent tax asset 1,909,782 . 4,824,818 125,560
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or doss 18 985,997 - 989,997 -
Cash and cash squivalenls 28 8,123,247 75603 2,488,915 20,953
13 357 541 4,338,414 11,502 466 1,844,017
Tolal assets 68,608,677 52,786,561 32,045,060 40,663,121
Lurrent ftabilities
Trade and oiher payables 22 7,359,204 5,187,167 7,401,157 193,077
Qther financial izbiiilies 23 1,086,686 243,528 327,806 335,032
Bank ovendrafts and loans 24 1,867,159 6,071,012 18Z0,7i5 A4 (28,245
Current lax liabililies 318,018 61,555 v -

10,631,064 12,583,259 3,589,658 4,557,054

Non-current lizhililes

Bank loans 24 15,027,288 20,658,305 14545454 20,139,561
Debt Secunties in issue 25 24 464 357 - 24464 357 -
Gther financial liabililies 23 380,703 280107 396,702 280,107
Defarred 1ax liabifities 17 3,949,636 2,681,161 3,622,480 2,419,418

43,831,983 23,599,663 43,022,593 22,819 086
Total liabilities 54,463,847 36,162,922 45 572,681 27,376,140
Net assets 14,121,730 16,623,624 16,472 379 13,287.031

11



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statements of financial position (continued)
31 December 2010

Group Holding
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009

Eur Eur Eur Eur
EQUITY
Share capital 26 13,574,700 1,747,030 13,674,700 1,747,030
Exchange translation reserves 8,308 9,961 - -
Other equily 27 25,143 12,169,011 212,351 12,044,023
Retained eamings/
{accumulated losses) (88,476) 2,074,088 1,686,328 (504,002)
Equity attributable to
owners of the company 13,509,674 16,000,090 16,472,379 13,287,051
Non controlling interest 612,056 623,549 - =
Total equity 14,121,730 16,623,639 16,472,379 13,287,051

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors, authorised for
issue on 29 April 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

!
e \ /
\ : .l |

Marén Hili Melo Hill )\
Chalrman Chief Executive Officer

12
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statements of changes in equity (continued)
Year endad 31 December 2010

Holding company

Balance at 1 Janvary 2060
Capital contribulion (note 27)
Shareholders' loans

hald tor capitalization (note 27)
Total comprehensive incoime
for the year

Bafance at 1 January 2010
lasue of share capilat
Reduction in share capital
Capilalized loans (note 27)
Dividends (nate 14)
Capilalized equity (nate 27)
Tolal comprehensive incotne
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2010

Retalned
garnings/
Share mccumulated QOther
capital losses equtity Totat
Eur Eur Eur Eur
1,747 030 (572517} - 1,974,113
- 10,044,023 0,044,023
- - 2,000,000 2.000,000
68,018 - €8,915
1,747,030 {504,002) 12,044,023 13,287,051
500,000 - 500,000
(716,353) 504,002 212,351 -
2,000,000 {2,00G,000) -
- (1,500,000} - {1 500,000}
10,044 025 {10,044.023) -
3,185,323 - 3,185,328
13,574,700 1,685,328 212,351 15,472,378

14



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statements of cash flows

Year ended 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit bafore tax

from continuing operations
Profiti{loss) before tax

from discontinued operations
Adjustrments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Interest payable

Interest receivable

Amorlisation of bond issue expenses
Revaluation of interest rate swap
Inventory write-downs

Investment income

Increase in fair value of inveslments

Operating profit before working capital
movement

Movement in inventories

Movement in trade and other receivables
Movement in trade and other payables

Cash flows from operalions
Interest paid
Income lax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Group Holding

2010 2009 2010 2009

Eur Eur Eur Eur
378,553 1,713,220 5,208,248 225103
- - - (60,173)
3,280,615 2,745,668 626,780 B13.477
12,369 33,607 - -
1,768,489 1,138,541 2,168,206 1,057,111
{406,844) (53,605) (694,038) (189,810)
43,431 - 43,431 -
315,764 - 315,764 -

- 86,503 = -
- - {7,114,027) (518,902)

(14,277) (14,277) -
5,377,980 5,663,934 530,085 1,126,806
(28,311) (71,012) - 448,795
(81,708) (279,376) 948,362 (337,963)
(102,965) 526,790 (66,822) (735,083)
5,164,996 5,840,336 1,411,525 502,545
(903,467) (1,138,541) (883,203) (1,067,111)
(618,925) (624,579) - (125,600)
3,642,604 4,077,216 528,322 (680,166)

15



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Statements of cash flows {continued}
Year endad 31 December 2010

Gioup Holding
2010 2005 2018 2004

Cash flows from Invasling activitigs

Purtlase afl praperty, plant and

enquipmeanl {f0,587,507) (5,431,934) {104,815) {5, 1044
Proceeds lrom sale of propany,

plan! and aquipment 134,162 57217 " 185,837
Purghase of inlangible aseets {2,389) (52,858) . -
Purchase of inveslment in subeitiany - - (1,060,002}

Capital contribulion to subsidiary - - 4,750,000} -
FPurchage of financial assets at fair value

through prefit or leas (975, 720) - [a%E, Iy -
Repayments of loans and recévables - - . 240,538
Fayments of loans and receivables [T92,703) (2.801)  {12,040,358) (2 &01)
Interzzi received 330,463 LAB0S 123,332 189810
Dividends Received . - 2,258,400 516,802
Cash and cash equivalents an

buzinsss combination - i1.212.097

Net cash fows from fnvesting aclivities {11,808,353) W5,605.804)  (12,485,564) 1,707,142
Cash flows from financing activities

Bonds iszued 24 420,226 - 24,420,928 -
Repaymanl of bank barmvings (6,553,900} {1.245,403) (6,823,2¥2) (1,798,316
Repayments to retated parics (193,430} (215, 149) [152,395) (1,191 G637}
lzsue of share czpilal 500,000 - 500,000 -
Dividends Paid [1,508,000) - 1, 500,000) -
MNet cash from financing aclkivities 18,370,556 (1.4460,652) 18,405,259 {2.3058.600)
Nat movamaont fn cash and cash 8,122,181 {3.980.147) 3446017 {1.272.857)
equivalents

Casft and cash squivelenis at 1he

beglnning of the year {Z£,005920) 1,904,603 {960,645} 31218z
ENact of farelan axchange changas

on cash and cash equlvalonts {477) {1383} - -
Cash and cash aguivalanls st the
ghd of the year {note 28) 6,116,784 (2,005,820} 2,484,372 (250,543}
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

20

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.
The significant accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
holding company and entities controlled by the holding company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, in preparing these
consolidated financial statements, appropriate adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by
the group entities.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets or liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries are
identified separately from the group’s equity therein. Non-controlling interests
consists of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the non-controlling interests share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of the
non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of
the group except to the extent that the non-controlling interests has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost
of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the group in exchange for conirol of the acquiree, plus any costs atiributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under International
Financial Reporting Standard 3, Business Combinations are recognised at their Fair
values at the acquisition date,
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at
cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree is initially measured at the non-controlling
proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the company. Control is the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

Investment in subsidiaries in the company’s financial statements are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Income from the investments is recognised only
to the extent of distributions received by the company from post-acquisition profits.
Dividends from the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

A Jjoint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the group and other parties
undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control that is when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Joint venture arrangements which involve the
establishment of an entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred to as
Jjointly controlled entities.

The group reports its interests in jointly controlled entities using proportionate
consolidation, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint
control ceases. The group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the
jointly controlled entity are combined with similar items in the group’s financial
statements on a line-by-line basis.
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

The group’s property, plant and equipment are classified into the following classes —
land and buildings, improvement to premises, motor vehicles, plant and equipment,
furniture fixtures and fittings, and other equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure on repairs and maintenance of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an expense when incurred.

Land and buildings are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Subsequent to initial recognition, land and buildings are
stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Other tangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition represent the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount, and are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Properties in the cowrse of construction

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply, or administrative
purposes are classified as property, plant and equipment and are carried at cost, less
any identified impairment loss. For qualifying assets, cost includes borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the group’s accounting policy on borrowing costs.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assefs, commence
when the assets are available for use.
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the depreciable assets are available for use and is
charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following

bases:
Buildings - 2.5% - 5% per annum
Improvements to premises - 15% per annum
Motor vehicles - 12.5% - 33.3% per annum
Plant and equipment - 10% - 50% per annum

Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 10% - 25% per annum

No depreciation is charged on land.

The depreciation method applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost, being the fair value at the acquisition
date for intangible assets acquired in a business combination. Expenditure on an
intangible asset is recognised as an expense in the period when il is incurred unless it
forms part of the cost of the asset that meets the recognition criteria or the item is
acquired in a business combination and cannot be recognised as an intangible asset, in
which case it forms part of goodwill at the acquisition date.

The useful life of intangible assefs is assessed lo determine whether it is finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised. Amortisation is
charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of intangible assets less any
estimated residual value, over the estimated useful lives. The amortisation method
applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Intangibles are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
represent the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount, and are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

M

(i)

(iii)

(iii)

Support services licence

After initial recognition, support services licence is carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Support
services licence is written off to profit or loss by equal installments over the
term of the support services agreement with the subsidiaries, being 20 years.

Computer software

In determining the classification of an asset that incorporates both intangible and
tangible elements, judgement is used in assessing which element is more
significant. Computer software which is an integral part of the related hardware
is classified as property, plant and equipment and accounted for in accordance
with the group’s accounting policy on property, plant and equipment. Where the
software is not an integral part of the related hardware, this is classified as an
intangible asset and carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Computer software classified as an intangible
asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over three to five years.

Acquired rights

Acquired rights are classified as intangible assets. After initial recognition,
acquired rights are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Acquired rights are amortised on a straight-line
basis over thirty-five to forty years.

Franchisee fees

After initial recognition, franchisee fees are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Franchisee fees are
written off to profit or loss by equal instalments over the term of the franchisee
agreement, being twenty years expiring on 18 December 2027.
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Notes to the financial statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs for all financial assets or financial liabilities not classified at fair

value through profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when the group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assel
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets expire or when the entity transfers the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. This occurs when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

An equity instrument is any coniract (hat evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(i)  Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are classified with current assets and are stated at
their nominal value. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.

(ii) Investments

The group’s investments are classified into the following categories - loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market other than those
that are held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss or as available-for-sale financial assets or those for which
the group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment other than
because of credit deterioration.
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2‘

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other financial instruments (coniinued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Investments (continued)

After initial recognition, loans and receivables are recognised at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the financial asset is derecognised, or impaired, or through the
amorlisation process.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those that are held for
trading purposes or those financial assets that are so designated upon initial
recognition. After initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at their fair value. Gains and losses arising from a change
in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Where applicable, dividend income on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised with other dividend income, if any, arising on other
financial assets. Where applicable, interest income on financial assets ai fair
value through profit or loss is disclosed separately within the line item
investment income. Fair value gains and losses are recognised within the line
itemns investment income or investment losses as appropriate.

Bank borrowings

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Bank loans are carried at face
value due to their market rate of interest.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing bank overdrafts are carried at
face value in view of their short-term maturities.

Other borrowings

Subsequent to initial recognition, other borrowings are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting is

immaterial.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are classified with current liabilitics and are stated at
their nominal value, unless the effect of discounting is material, in which case
trade payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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31 Decamber 2010

2. Bignihcant acconnting pokicics (continued)
Otirer financial insiruments foominued)
{vi) Shares issued Dy the company
Ordinary shares issued by the company are classified 25 equity instruments,
{vii} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial assets and derivative financial labililics are classified as
held for irading wunless they are designated and effective hedging instruments.
During the year under review and during the prior year, the group did not
destprate any of its derivative financial instruments in a hedging relatjonship for
accounting purposes. After initial recognition, darivative financial instruments
ave measured au their fair value. Gains and losses arising from a chacge in fair
vajue are recopnised In profit of loss in the period in which they arisc.

Ireentories

lnvermorics are stated al he Jower of cost and net realisable value. The group
considers ihe nalure and use of the inventory when calculating the cost of inventories.

Cost s calculated using the weighted average method, Cost comprises expenditure
fncurred in acquiring the inventeries and ciher costs incurred in bringing inventories
Lo their present location and condition, Mef realisabie value represents fhe estimaled
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs 1o be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution,

Preovisiony

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or conglructive
obligation: 2% @ result of a past evend, it is probable that an ovtllow of resoirces
cmbodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligalion and a reliabls
estimate can be mude of the smount of the obligation, Provisions are measured at the
divecters” best estimate of the expeonditire vequired o settle the present obligation al
the end of the reporing pertod, I the effect of the time valuc of mongy is material,
provisions are determined by discouniing the expected {uture cash ows al a pre-tax
rale that reftcot current imarket assessinents of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are not vecognised for Tuure
operaling losses,

24



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

2. Sigwificant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment

All assets are tested for impairment except for deferred tax assets and inventories. At
the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of assets, including cash-
generating units, is reviewed to determine whether there is any indication or objective
evidence of impairment, as appropriate, and if any such indication or objective
evidence exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective of whether an
indication of impairment exists.

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ils
recoverable amount.

For loans and receivables, if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the loss is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly.

The impairment loss on investments in equily instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial instrument.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the
assel is impaired, the cumulative impairment loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment and is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

In the case of other assets tested for impairment, the recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell (which is the amount obtainable from sale in an arin’s
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal)
and value in use (which is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset). Where the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced 1o its recoverable amount, as calculated.
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zl

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment (continued)

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, then
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined. For cash-generating units, where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets of the unit is reduced first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
directly.

In the case of other assets tested for impairment, an impairment loss recognised in a
prior year is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, then
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined. For cash-generating units, where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets of the unit is reduced first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Impairment reversals are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an available-for-sale investment in
an equity instrument are not reversed through profit or loss.

The impairment loss on investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is

not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that
control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

If, after reassessment, the group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group’s cash-
generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of value-added tax and discounts,
where applicable. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the company and these can be measured reliably. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of the risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time of delivery.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
(ii) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a timely basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the assets net carrying amount,

(iii) Other operating income and commissions
Other operating income and commissions are accounted for on an accruals basis.
(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include the costs incurred in obtaining external financing.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised from the time that expenditure
for these assets and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare these assets for their intended use or sale are in progress.
Borrowing costs are capitalised until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are suspended during extended periods in
which active development is interrupted, All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred,

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease classification is made at the
inceptions of the lease, which is the earlier of the date of the lease agreement and the
date of commitment by the parties to the principal provision of the lease,

Rentals payable under operating leases, less the aggregate benefit of incentives
received from the lessor, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern of the user’s benefit.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax is based on the taxable result for the period. The taxable result for the
period differs from the result as reported in profit or loss because it excludes items
which are non-assessable or disallowed and it further excludes items that are taxable
or deductible in other periods. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable profil.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation fcontinued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts on a net basis or to realise the asset and liability

simultaneously.
Employee benefits

The group contributes towards the state pension in accordance with local legislation.
The only obligation of the group is to make the required contributions. Costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Currency franslation

The financial statements of the group are presented in its functional currency, the
Euro, being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group
operates. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
are translated at the exchange rates ruling on the date of transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are re-
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at year-end. Exchange
differences arising on the settlement and on the re-translation of monetary items are
dealt with in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency that are measured at fair value are re-
translated using the exchange rate ruling on the date the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are not re-translated.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period, except for differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. For such non-monetary items, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income,

Foreign exchange gains and losses are included within operating profit, except in the
case of significant exchange differences arising on investing or financing activities,
which are classified within investment income, investment losses or finance costs as

appropriate.
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2,  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Currency translation (continued)

For the purpose of presenting these financial statements, income and expenses of the
group’s foreign operations are translated to Euro at the average exchange rates, Assels
and liabilities of the group’s foreign operations are translated to Euro at the exchange
rate ruling al the date of the statement of financial position. Exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income accumulated in a separate component of
equity. Such differences are reclassified from equily to profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. Bank
overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purposes of the statement of cash flows and are presented in current liabilities in the
statement of financial position,

Dividends

Dividends to holders of equity instruments are recognised as liabilities in the period in
which they are declared.

Dividends to holders of equity instruments, are debited directly to equity. Dividends
relating to a financial liability, or to a component that is a financial liability, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss and are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income with finance costs,

3. Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, management has made no
judgements which can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and, at the end of the reporting period, there were no key assumptions
concerning the future, or any other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year other than as disclosed below:

The group reviews property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to evaluate
whether events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

3. Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

In addition, the group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. Determining whether the
carrying amounts of these assets can be realised requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units. The value in use calculation requires the directors to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated, to the cash-generating units
(*CGUs") that are expecled to benefit from that business combination.

The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to the Malta operations. The
group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently il there are
indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
period. The directors estimate discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.

The assessment of recoverability of the carrying amount of goodwill includes:

o forecasted projected cash flows up to 2020 and projection of terminal
value using the perpetuity method;

s growth rate of 5%; and

e use of 20% (pre-tax) to discount the projected cash flows to net present
values.

Based on the above assessment, management expects the carrying amount of
goodwill to be recoverable and there is no impairment in value of the goodwill.
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4.

International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of the approval of these financial statements, a number of standards and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board were either not
vet endorsed by the EU or were not yet applicable to the group.

IAS 24 (revised in2009) — Related Parly Disclosures

The revised 1AS24 supersedes 1AS24 — Related Party Disclosures issued in 2003 and
is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2011. Earlier
application, in whole or in part, is permitted. The revised standard clarifies and
simplifies the definition of a related party and provides certain exemptions for
government-related entities. The group will apply the revised standard from 1 January
2011. The group is assessing the potential impact, if any, of the revised standard on
the related party disclosures.

IFRS 9 (as amended in 2010) = Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments issued in November 2009 and amended in October
2010 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities and the accounting for financial liabilities.

IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash lows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investmenis and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities relates to the accounting for changes in fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial liabilities that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

International Financial Reporting Standards in issue bul nol yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with
earlier application permitted. However, this standard has not yet been endorsed by the
EU. The group is in the process of assessing the impact of the new standard its
financial position and performance.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 34 - Interim
Financial Reporting

The amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 34 are part of the May 2010 Improvements to
IFRSs 2010. The amendments to IAS | clarify that an entity may present the analysis
of other comprehensive income by item either in the statement of changes in equity or
in the notes to the financial statements. The amendments to IAS 34 emphasises the
principle in IAS 34 that the disclosurc about significant events and transactions in
interim periods should update the relevant information presented in the most recent
annual financial report, and clarifies how to apply this principle in respect of financial
statements and their fair values.

The amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 34 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011 with earlier application permitted. The group does not currently
expect these amendments to have a significant impact on its annual financial
statements or the interim financial reports to be issues in the period of initial
application.

The Board of Directors anticipate that the adoption of the International Financial
Reporting Standards that were in issue at the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, but not yet effective, other than the above, will have no material impact on
the financial statements of the group in the period of initial application.

Segment information

The group operates one business segment which is the operation of the McDonalds
business which activities are licensed under the terms of the franchise agreement
awarded for each geographical location. The main line of activities are reported
according to the geographical location. Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of these lines require local resources and as well marketing
approaches. All inter segment transfers for management services are carried out cost

basis.
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5. Segment information {continued)

This year the group adopled IFRE § Operating Segmenis, which replaces [AS 14
Secpment Reperting. The standard is applied retrospectively. The accounting policy
for identifying segments is now based on internal managenent reporting information
that is regularly review by the chict operating decision maker. In condrast, [AS 14
required the group to identify two sets of sepments (business and pengraphical) based
oil visks and rewards of the operating segments, which are based on peopraphical
location and in zecordance with the licence agreentent.

Revenue reporled below represenis revenue generated {rom external customers. There
were no intersepment sales in the year, The proup's repartable sepments under IFRS 8
we direet sales adtribuzable o each country where i1 operates as a McDonalds

development licencee.

The group operates in four principal geographical areas - Malta (country of domicile),
Estonia, Latvia and Lithueania,

Measuremen! of operaiing segment profif or loss. assets and liobililies

Segment profit represents the profit earned by cach segment afler aflocation of central
administration costs and {finance costs based on services and finance provided. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for ihe purposes of

resource dllocation and assessment of sepment performance.

The accounting policies of the reportable segiments are the same rs the groop's
gecounting policies deseribed in note two.

Reconcibiations of reporable segment revenues, proht or foss, assels and labilities 1o
consalidated 1otals are reported below:

Prafit or loss

2810 2009

Eur Eur

Total prodit for reporable segmerds 4,024,307 2,313,439

Elirination of intra group bansacions {8.860,174} {1,558,236)
Unallocatzd amaunls:

Dividend income 7,114,027 518,502

Olher unallocaled amounts {1,918,609) 139115

Consolidated profit befare {ax 378,657 1,713,220
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

Segment information (continued)

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments
Elimination of intra-group receivables
Unallocated amounts:

Intangible assets

Loans and receivables

Goodwill

Other unallocated amounts

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Elimination of intra-group liabilities
Unallocated amounts:

Bank loans

Debt securilies in issue

Other unallocated amounts

Consolidated total liabililies

2010 2009

Eur Eur
37,796,345 29,581,078
(11,646,623)  (8,594,336)
10,367,819 10,977,694
16,029,768 3,999,409
14,606,999 14,606,899
1,421,369 2,215,717
68,686,677 52,786,561
2010 2009

Eur Eur
23,832,830 13,789,976
(19,377,433)  (5,624,083)
16,894,447 26,845,562
24,464,357 -
8,849,746 1,151,467
54,483,947 36,162,922
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Motes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

a.

Other operating income

Consullancy fes
Support sarvices
Reversal of provision for
cash advances

Other income

Investment itcome

Interest income on

bank deposils

Inerest income on
subsidiary loans

fnterest income on

related company loans
Interest income on financial
assel at Bir value through
profit or loss

Increass in fair value on
investmenis

Cividends from investments

in U bsidiaries

Finance costs

Interest on han

ovardraft 2nd loans

Interest on bonds

Armaorlisafion of bond

issue rapenses

Interesl on amatnts payable
inrelated parties

Lass forthe year and interest cost
o derivative financizg!

nstrimenl

Cther finance cosls

Group Holding
2010 2009 2010 20089
Eur Eur Eur Eur
11,267 443,267 361,476
. 1,264,515 4,171,128
500,000 187 350 . .
44,411 197 610 - 167 837
555,678 234060 1,644,782 1,700,247

Group Hoking
2010 2009 2010 2004
Eur Eur Eur Eur
71,644 489 8571 14,278 108
- 484,331 189,702
76,377 3,754 76,377 -
258,823 - 108,053 -
4,277 - 14,277 -
- - 7,114,027 518,902
421,121 305 7,822,343 708,712

Group Helding
2010 2009 200 2008
Eur Eur Eur Cur

859 808 1,126,412
865,002 -

43,431

13,141 13128

836,564 -
65,340 -

548,242 1,008,530

1,275,002 -
43,431
13,141 50575
636,584 -
65,340 -

2,193,004 1,138,541

2582740 1,037,111
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9, Profit befors tay

Graup Helding
214 2009 Wip 2008
Eur Eur Eur Eur
This is stated afler charging/
{orextiting):
Depreciation of properly,
pant and equiprnen! and
amonisation of intangivle
assets 3,280,615 2745, 668 526,780 613,476
Nzt exchange differences 24,8062 10,544 - -

The analysis of the amounts that ave payable to the auditors and that are required o be
disclosed may be analysed as follows:

Grouwp
2010 2008
Eur Eur
Total remureration payatie {o the parent
coripany's audifors in respecl of the audit of
the {inancial statements and the undenakings
included in the consolidation 34,000 45,000
Total remunsration payable to other auditors
in respect of the underakings ingheded in the
cansolidation 0,760 A2 062
Tetal fees payatz to the parenl company's
guditors for non-audi senices other tham other
assurance sarvices and tax advisory services 64,550 8810
148,310 98772
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9. Profit hefore tax (vonlinued)

Holding company

2010 2008
Eur Eur
Total remuneration payable Lo lhe campany's
auditars for the audil of the company's
financial stataments 5,000 5,000
Total fees payablz 1o the company's auditors for
nan-audil servicas other than olher assuranca
services and tax advisory services 64,550 8,000
"""""""" 68,550 13,000
10, Key managentent personncl compensaiion
Group Halding
2010 26004 2o10 2005
Eur Eur Eur Eur
hreciors compensatlan:
Shod larm henefils:
Salaries gnd sacial
secUrity cantribution 118913 109,265 22,000 14,740
1t Staff costs and employee information
Group Holding
2010 2000 2010 2005
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Staf costs:
Wages and salaries 11,016,362 11,845,§72 581,811 282,971
Sacial securily costs 2,573,166 2644 449 11,288 3,160
14 488 62E 14 488 21 592,659 291,131
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11.  Siaifl costs and employce information {eontinned)

The average number of persons employed during the yzar by the proup and the
cainpany, was made up as foliows:

Group Hotding
2010 2009 2010 2009
Number Number Number Kumber
Cperations 16756 1,768 .
Adrinistration 113 111 a 7
1,768 1,862 2} 7

12.  Dviscontinued operalions

With effecl from 1 February 2009 the company’s distribution division for the
distribution of MeDonaid’s products in Malta was transforred o s subsidiary,
Premier Restaurants Malta Limited.

The results of the discontinued operations for the period from 1 January 2009 1o 31
Jatuary 2008 included in the statement of compreiensive income are set out below.

Halding company

200 2008
Eur Eur
Frofit from discontinued operations
Revenus - 376,005
Cnst of sajes - (344,882}
Gross proiit . 34,113
Other expenses - {94 386}
L.oss befars tax N (80,173}
Incame lax expense - 5030
Loes for tha yaar (25,143}
Cash flows from discontinued aperations
Nel cash llows frons aoperating activities - 87,535
tet cash Aows fmom invesiing activitics - 155,837
Met cash inflows B 263,373
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12,

13.

BPiscontinued operations (continted)

The uet asseis of the company's distribution division at the date of transfer on

31 January 2006 were as follows;

Praperly, prant and equipment
Inventaries

Income tax expense

Current tax {creditfexpense
Defarred tax expense

Altributabla {o:
Conlinuing operations
Discontinued operalions

31.01.2¢0%9

Eur

155,837

351,239

507,096

Group Holding

2010 2008 1L EL 2009

Eur Cur Eur Eur
(1,061,908} a47, 185 - 40
2032230 17445 2,022,420 05,075
1,030,325 564,630 2,022,920 95,015
1,030,325 854,630 2,022,920 131.045
- - - (35,030
1,030,325 864,630 2,022,920 98,015
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13,

Income tax expense {(continned)

Tax applying the statutory domestic income fax rate and the income tax expense for

the year are reconciled as follows:

The tax rate used for the 2010 and 2009 reconciliations is the corpoiate tax rate of
353% payable by corparale entilies in Malla on taxable profils under tax law in that

Jurisdiction.

Prol for the year belore

tax from coniinuing operalions
Logs forthe year

before tax from discortinuad
operations

Tatal profit far
the year before iax

Tax at lhe applicable
rate of 35%

Tax alfeci of.

Depreciation charges not
deduclible by way of capital
sllowances in delermining
taxabile income

Dizallowabls expenses
Mzla Lax an foreign dividend
Parmanent differences on
sale of fived assets
Degrease in provision for
cash advances

Effact of different tax rales of
suhsidianes operating in other
jurisdictions

Prefits not chargeabte b lax
and fax exemplions

Change in deferred tax
valualion allowance
Defarred fax not

accounted for

Gain on dispogal of inveslingnts
Loss on swap

Olher permanen differences

(RComne tax expanse
for the year

Group Halding
2010 2008 2010 2009
Eur Eur Eur Eur
378,553 1,713,220 5,208,243 925 103
- - (60,173
379563 1,713,220 5,208,246 164.930
132,494 ROD BT 1,822,887 57,726
151,896 145,153 - .
19,332 73,101 115,283 18,057
740,680 56,000 - -
" 21,874 . 20,285
{210,000) (65,675) -
18,479 {108,080) - {53}
{1,159) 150,236) - .
&N {7,360} . -
47,409 .
{25 767) - (28,767}
140,617 - 110,617
{4,335) - "
1,030,325 464,630 2,022,920 o6,015




Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

14,  Dividends

In respect of the current year, a net dividend of Eurl,500,000 (Eurl1.05 per ordinary
share) was declared and paid in 2010. The directors do not recommend the payment of

a final dividend.
15. Intangible assets

Group
Support
sarvices Computer Acquired Franchisee
licence  software rights Fee Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur

Cost
At 01.01.2009 12,366,964 25,826 378124 = 12,771,914
Increase due to
business combination - - - 300,461 300,461
Additions - 232 62,626 - 62,858
Disposals - {190) - 2 (180)
Difference on exchange - (25) 112 (6) a1
At 01.01.2010 12,366,964 25,843 441,862 300,455 13,135,124
Additions - 2,388 - - 2,389
Disposals - (1,902) - - (1,802)
Difference on exchange - Lid 183 - 260
At 31.12.2010 12,366,964 26,407 442,045 300,455 13,135,871
Amortisation
At 01.01.2009 618,348 24 821 120,535 - 763,704
Increase due to
business combination - - - 178,850 179,950
Provision for
the year 618,348 648 11,710 15,021 645727
Disposals - (189) - - (189)
Differance on exchange - (23) - . (23)
At 01.01.2010 1,236,696 25,257 132,245 184,971 1,589,169
Provision for
the year 618,346 962 13,513 15,005 647,826
Disposals - {1,894) - - {1,894)
Difference on exchange - 73 52 - 125
At 31.12.2010 1,855,042 24,398 145,810 209,976 2,235,226
Carrying amount
AlL31.12.2008 11,130,268 586 308,617 105,484 11,545,955
At 31.12.2010 10,611,922 2,009 298,235 00,479 10,900,645
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15, Iniangible assels feontinpced)

Holdisg company
Support
sarvices
licence
Eur
Cost
At01.01.2009 12,197,438
Addiliong :
AfO1.01.2010 12,187 438
Additions -
AL31.12.2010 12,197 438
Amartisalion
At 01.01.2009 GQ9 872
Frovision for the year 609,872
A0 2010 1219744
Provigion for tha year 608 875
A 31122010 1,829,819
Carrying amaunt
Al 3412 2009 10,877 694
Af31.13.2010 10,367,519

The amertisation expense on imangible agsets has been inciuded in the line item
‘Distribution expenses’ 10 the stelement of comprehensive income,
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The group’s land and buildings with a carrying amount of Fur738,981 (2009 —
Eur760,857) have been pledged to secure bank borrowings of a subsidiary (see

note 24),
Holding
Furniture,
fixtures
Improvements Motor  Plantand  and other
to premises Vehicles equipment equipment Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
Cost
At01.01.2009 20,558 144,291 29,303 25,609 219,761
Additions - - - 5,104 5,104
Disposals (20,558)  (144,291) (29,303) (24,627)  (218,779)
At 01.01.2010 - . - 6,086 6,086
Additions - - . 104,815 104,815
At31.12.2010 - - . 110,901 110,901
Accumulated
depreciation
At 01.01.2009 6,398 33,387 3,839 16,783 60,407
Provision for the year . - . 3,604 3,604
Disposals {6,398) {33,387) (3,839) (19,318) {62,942)
At 01.01.2010 - - - 1,069 1,069
Provision for the year - . - 16,905 16,905
At 31.12.2010 - - - 17,974 17,974
Carrying amount
At 31.12.2009 - - - 5,017 5017

At31.12.2010 B - - 92,927 92,927
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes fo the financial statements
31 Degember 2010

17.  Deferred taxation

Grong
Opening Recoghised in Clasing
halance  profit or loss balance
Eur Eur Eur
Deferred Lax assets
2009
ArFSIngy ot
Unused tax lossas 1.474.471 1,133.176 2,607,647
2010
Arising on:
Temporary differences an
properly, plam and equinment - 56,103 86,703
Unused iax fosses 2,607 647 {513,658) 1,787,789
2507 647 (763.758) 1,543,892
Deferred tax liakilities
2005
Ansing ori
Temporary dilfsrences on
properly, plant and equipment 223,947 43,517 267,464
Temposary diflerences on
inlangitile agsets 1,180,287 1,223,430 2,413,697
1414214 1 286,947 2,681,161
2010
Ariging on:
Temporary diffarences on
intangible assels 2,413,697 1,208,762 3,622.479
Temparary differences on
property, plant and equipment 287,484 hB B93 327,167
2 681,181 1,768 475 31,949 636
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements

31 December 2010

17.

Deferred taxation (continued)

Holding

Deferred tax assets
2009

Arising on:

Unused tax losses

2010
Arising on:
Unused tax losses

Deferred tax liabilities
2009

Arising on:

Temporary differences on
intangible assets

2010

Arising on;
Temporary differences on

intangible assels

Opening Recognised In Closing
balance  profit or loss balance
Eur Eur Eur
1,474,471 1,133,176 2,607,647
2,607,647 {819,858) 1,787,789
1,190,267 1,228,151 2,419,418
2,419,418 1,203,062 3,622,480

Deferred tax assets have been recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be

utilised.
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Dacember 2010

13.

Financial asscts

(e} Fuvestents in subsidiaries

Cost

At01.01.2000
Rectassification from available-for-sale investment

Capital cordribulion by shareholders (noils 27}
Additiens

Ar31.122009
Capital contribution in cazh
Additians

At 31.12.20810

Holdinn
Investmenis

In subskdiaries
Eur

6,829,155
£,813.805
10,644,023
226,189

21.118.172

1,750,000
1.060,002

24,469,174
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2040

18, Financtal assets (continued)
(&) Joint vertures

Presnier Restaurants Malta Limiled (a sabsidiary) has a 30% intorest in Arcades
Limited. The following amounts are included in the group linangial statcments as
A result of proportionate consolidation of Arcades Limited:

2010 2009
Bur Eur
Current assets 54,901 26 558
Non-current assets 211,787 466,827
Current ligbilities 442044 518,948
Non-currenl liabilities 4,104 3,885
Incom:e 1,325,263 1,275,233
Expenses 1,221,829 1,183,638
fo)  Fivancial assefs af jair valve through profi or foss
Group Holding
2010 2008 2010 2008
Fur Cur Eur Eur
Falr Value
Financial assets a1 fair
value through profit ar loss
dasignaled as al fair value
through profit or loes upon
initial recagnition and
classified with current assats
- debt instruments listed
lGGaily D8%,997 - 089,907 -
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

18. [Financial assets (continued)

(d) Loans and receivables

Group Holding
Loans to Loans to
other other
related Loans to related
parties Total subsidiaries parties Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur

Amortlsed cost
At 01.01,2009 1427502 1427502 3,500,644 1.427,602 4,937,146
Increase 280 2,801 . 2.801 2,801
Repaymeants (940,538) {940,538) . {940,538) (940,538)
At 01.01.2010 489,765 488,765 3,609,644 488,765 3,889,408
Increase 792,703 792,703 11,247 656 792,703 12,040,359
At 31.12.2010 1282468 1,282,468 14,757,300 1,282 468 16,039,768
Carrying amount
At 31.12.2009 469,765 489,765 3,509,644 489,765 3,999,409
Less: Amount expected
lo be settled within
12 months (shown (489,765) (489,765) - (489,765) (489,765)
under current assels)
Amounl expecled lo be
sellled after 12 months - - 3,509,644 - 3,509,644
At 31.42.2010 1,282,468 1,282,468 14,757,300 1,282,468 16,039,768
Less: Amount expected
to be settled within 12
months (shown under
current assets) (1,262,468) (1,282,468) {932,415) (1,262,468)  (2,214,883)
Amount expected to be
sattled after 12 months . - 13,824,885 . 13,824,885
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Premier Capital p.L.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

i8.

1%

24

Financial assets {continued)
() Loons and receivables fcontinued)

The toans to subsidiaries amounting to Eurl4,574,885 are unsccured and bear
interest at 6.8%. Full mepayiment of the loans 5 receivable by 2018 The
remaining loans arz unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The loans to related parties amounting to Eawed, 282,468 (2009 ~ Eurd 86, 965) are
unsecured, interesi-free, and repayable on demand.

Long term prepayments

This relates mainly 1o prepaid rental made by a subsidiary in 2048 amounting 1o in
total far 301,824 relating to a particular restaurant up o August 2026, As at the
end of the reporling period, prepaid rental relating to the next tweive menths
amounting to Ewr28 405 2009 - Far28 477 have been recorded as prepaymet
under current assets with he remmiming prepaid eola! celating 1o after bwelve
months amounting to Eurd /6,609 (2009 - Furdd3003) recorded as long term
prepayments under non-cuirent Assers.

Inventorics
Group Holding
20%d 2009 2016 2009
Eur Etre Eur Eur
Raw materials and
LONSUMADIES 1,167,192 1,138,564 - -
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21

22

Trade and other receivables

Group Holding
2010 2008 201a 2009
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Trade receivables 45,376 37,267 M7 33,532
Oihar receivables 1,215,245 738,147 125,528 146,346
Amauats dus from related
CoOMpanies 338,862 533,317 26,408 40,772
Amounla due from
subsidiaries - - 3,845 922 721,999
Prepayments and accried
McomE 285,282 419,434 14,857 185,280

1,884,686 1,731,165 3,985,852 1207738

The amoumts due fraom substdiaries and related parties are unscoured, tnteresi-free
and are repayable on demand,

Trade and other payables

Group Holding
2010 2009 2014 2008
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Trade payables 2,419,104 2,838,245 33,878 110,088
Olner payables 860,948 957 224 . 4,397
Social securty liabilies 856,618 065,932 -
VAT and ciher liabiliies 353,899 335,099
Accruals and defemed
income 2,268,634 1,600,667 1,267,279 78,562
7,359,204 5,187,167 1,401,167 193077
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23.

Other financial Liabilities

Amounts dua to related
comganies

Armaunts due to group
companies

Derivative financial liability
held for trading

Dividends payable ta nun
confrolling interests

Less: Amount due lor

settiemeni within 12 months

[shown urder current
liabilities}

Chher Minancial liobilities are repayable as follows:

Cn demand or wilkin
e year

Inn the second year
Ir1 the 1hind year
inthe fourth year

tess. Amount dus for

satilernent within 12 months

(shown under current
liatiilies)

Group HoldIng

2010 2000 2010 2008

Eur Eur Eur Eur
313,228 440,800 13,3238 397 266

- - 89,5186 187,673

315,764 - 6,754 -
848,396 62,732 - -
1,477,382 503,632 718,508 505,135
(1,086,888} (243,525} {327,805) (335,032)
394,703 260,107 309,702 26&1_0?

Group Holding

2010 200G 2018 2009

Eur Eur Eur Eur
1,086,648 243,525 327,804 335,032
190,135 od 953 190,135 54,153
163,569 88 223 163,568 98,225
38,908 B7.731 38,9528 87,731
1,477,388 503,632 Ti8,608 595,139
(1,086,666} (243,525 (32,806} {335,032;
390,702 280,107 250,107

280,702
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

23.

24.

Other financial liabilities (continued)

Included in the amount due to related parties is an outstanding amount of
Eur260,113 (2009 — Ewr350,340) which bears interest at 4.25% per annum,
Eurl 69,880 (2009 — Eur260 107) of which is due for settlement after 12 months.
The remaining balances have no fixed date for repayment and the group and the
company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of these loans for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period. The amounts due to related parties
are unsecured and interest free.

Derivative financial instruments of Ewr315,764 comprise an interest rate swap
whereby the company had entered into a contract to swap a floating rate for a fixed
rate. The interest rate swap is stated at fair value and is classified with financial

liabilities classified as held for trading. An amount of Eur94,942 is classified with
current liabilities.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swaps, at the end of
the reporting period amounted to Eur20,000,000 (2009 — Eur20,000,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the fixed interest rates on interest rate swaps
amount to 2.45% (2009 — 2.45%). The floating rate is three-month EURIBOR.

The interest rale swaps seltle on a quarterly basis and the group settles the
difference between the fixed and floating interest rates on a net basis.

Bank overdrafi and loans

Group Holding
2010 2009 2010 2009
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Bank overdrafts 6,463 2,981,523 2,643 081,598
Bank loans 16,887,984 23,747,884 16,363,636 23,186,908

16,894,447 26729407 16,366,178 24,168,506

Bank overdraft and loans are repayable as follows:
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
21 December 2010

24,  Danl overdiafi and loans {continned)

Group Holding

2010 2009 2010 2009
Eur Eur Eur Eur

On demand or within
ane year 1,867,169 BOrifiz 1,820,725 41028945
In the second yaar 2424000 3162418 2,424,000 3,079,226
In fhe third year 2,424,600 3,195 838 2424000 3205
in the fourth year 2,424,000 3,231,154 2,424,000 3,147,961
In the fiith yaar 2,424,000 3,245,634 2424000 3,163,446
Aftar five vears 5,331,288 T.HB22.253 4,549.454 7836161

16,894,447 26,720 407 16,366,179 74,168,508
Less: amount due for
gettlement within 12

months {shown under
current liabililies}) (1,867,159} (B071,012) (1,820,728} {4.028,945)

16,024,288 20858308 14,545,454 20,139,061

The terms and conditions of the bank borrowings pertaining 0 the holding
company arc as fallows:

e ank loan of Eurd 6,363,636 (2009 — £uri 2,353,939 bears interest at adjusted
EURIBOR + 1.5% (2009 — 1.5%). The loan is secured by a pledge agreement
between the bank and the company, together with pledges over the Balfic
subsidiaries’ shares and a pledie over the subsidiaries’ immovable and movable
oroperiy. Diring 2009 the campany entered info an interest rate swap whereby the
company pays a lixed rate of inlerest of 2.45% over the principal and receives a
{loating rate of EURIBOR +3 months,

The remaining bank botrowings pertain to the company’s subsidiavies and the
termy and conditions ave as follows:

5%
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

24,

25,

Bank overdraft and loans (continued)

The bank overdraft facility of Eurl, 000,000 (2009 — Ewr2,500,000) bears interest
at 250 and 300 basis point over the bank’s base rate, presently 2.5% (2009: 2.5%)
per annum. This facility is secured by a first general hypothec over the assets of a
subsidiary company, over those of related companies, as well as by guarantees
provided by shareholders and related companies together with pledges on various
insurance policies.

The bank loan of Eur524,345 (2009 — Eur560,976) bears interest at the rate of
EURIBOR + fixed rate 0.9%. The loan is secured over land and buildings owned
by a subsidiary (see note 15) and is also guaranteed by another group company.

Debt securities in issue

2010 2009
Eur Eur
6.8% bonds redeemable 2017-2020 24,464,367

In April 2010 the company issued 250,000 6.8% bonds of a nominal value of
Euri00 per bond. The bonds are redeemable at their nominal value on 15 March
2020, subject to the issuer’s option to redeem all or any parl of the Bonds on any
of the designated early redemption dates. The latter fall on any date between 16
March 2017 and 14 March 2020 as the Issuer may determine by giving thirty days
prior notice to the Bondholders.

Interest on the bonds is due and payable annually on 15 March of each year.

The bonds are listed on the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange. The
carrying amount of the bonds is net of direct issue costs of Eur379,074 which are
being amortised over the life of the bonds. The market value of debt securities on
the last trading day before the statement of financial position date was
Eur26,062,500.
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26,  Share capital

2010 2009

Authorised,

Authorised Issued and  Issued and
called up called up

Eur Eur Eur

47,637 ordinary 'A' shares of Eur100
each, of which 45,249 have been issued
and called up

(2009 - 250,000 ordinary 'A’' shares of

Eur2.329373 each, all of which had
been issued and called up) 4,763,700 4,624,800 582,344

47,637 ordinary ‘B’ shares of Euri00
each, of which 45,249 have been issued
and called up

{20089 - 250,000 ordinary 'B' shares of

Eur2,329373 each, all of which had
been issued and called up) 4,763,700 4,624,900 582,343

47 637 ordinary 'C' shares of Eur100
each, of which 45,249 have been issued
and called up

(2009 - 250,000 ordinary 'C' shares of

Eur2.329373 each, all of which had
been issued and called up) 4,763,700 4,524,900 582,343

14,201,100 13,674,700 1,747,030

Save for the selection of directors in terms of Clause 55 of the Articles of
Association of the company, ordinary shares in the company, irrespective of the
class to which they belong, shall have equal rights as regards dividends and in all
other respects each shareholder shall be entitled to one vote in general meetings for

each of such shares held.

61



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements

31 December 2610

27. Other equity

Group

Bafgnoe a1 January 2009
Capilat conlribution
Sharsholdess’ lGans
Trarsfor from relaned
earmings ko [egel reseves

Balance at 1 January 2010
Capilalizalion

Loge oflsel regerve

Cafrital comt et fadea
by parent affbulabie o non
sontralling indenest

Transler fromelained
aarnings fo leg2l resarves

RBalance at 31 Dacember 2013

Holding

Balance at 1 Jaruasy 2002
Capilal contribndion
Shargholders’ lgang

Balance ai 1 January 2010
Capilalisafan
Loss offse] ceserve

Balance 5131 December 2010

Sharebalders'

Gapital Ipans for Legal Olher Total
conirtudlon  copitalisalion ranane rescria
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
- B4E11 8,511
LG4 023 - u 10,044 023
B 2.600.060 2,000,000
. - 60,577 . 0.577
W, 04,023 2,000,000 24,989 - 12,182,011
{10,044 023} (2. 000,000) - - {12,044 023
- . - HREL 212,451
- [3¥D 825} {374,895)
48529 55,604
- - 183,617 (iEE AT} 25,143
Sharchalders’
Capital {gans far Clirer Total
contribublon  capiatisallon Reserve
Eur Eur Eur Eur
10,044 023 . - 10,044 073
2,003,904 2,005,000
10,044,023 2.000,000 - V2,044,023
110,044,055 2,002,000 (2,044 023)
- - 21238 212281
i 212,351 12381

The capital confribution of £uwe/0.044,023 represented a contribution {rom
This econtribution was

sharcholders of the parent as explained in note 30.

canverted Tnte share capitai during 2010,

The sharcholders’ toans of Kwrd, 000,000 were converted to share capital during

2000,
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27,

28.

29,

Other equity (continued)

The legal reserve represents reserves created by the subsidiaries in Estonia and
Lithuania pursuant to the legal requirements in these jurisdictions.

The other reserve represents a cash capital contribution made by the parent
company to one of its subsidiaries attributable to non-controlling interests
amounting to Eur370,825 and a loss offset reserve amounting to Ewr212, 351 which
represents a reserve for the purpose of offsetting any losses that may be incurred
by the company from time to time and was created by a reduction of share capital
in 2010,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the
following amounts in the statement of financial position:

Group Holding
2010 2009 2010 2009
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Cash at bank and on hand 6,123,247 975,603 2,486,915 20,953
Bank overdrafts (6,463) (2,981,523) (2,643) (981,598)

6,116,784  (2,005920) 2,484,372 (960,645)

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates. The
interest rate on the cash at bank in 2010 was 2% - 3% (2009 — 2% - 3%). The
interest rate on bank overdrafts is disclosed in note 24,

Significant non-cash transactions

During the year the company increased its share capital by Eurl1,827,670.

Part of the increase amounting to Zur300,000 was paid in cash.

The remaining amount was satisfied by the capitalization of shareholders loans

advanced in 2009 amounting to Ew-2,000,000, and a capitalization of a capital
contribution arising in 2009 amounting to Euwrl0,044,023 (note 30).
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30. Business combination achieved in stages

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the company owned the majority (78.81%) of
the non-voting shares of Premier Restaurants Malta Limited. In addition at that
date, the shareholders of the company (the “shareholders™) were also sharcholders
of the majority (86.69%) of the voting shares of Premier Restaurants Malta
Limited and constituted collectively %’s of its Board of Directors.

With effect from 1 January 2009 the company gained effective control over the
vating rights attached to the voting shares in Premier Restaurants Malta Limited.
Consequently, Premier Restaurants Malta Limited became a subsidiary of the
company with effect from 1 January 2009.

In the separate financial statements of the company, the above gave rise to a capital
contribution of Eurl0,044,023 with a corresponding increase in the cost of the
investment in Premier Restaurants Malta Limited. In the consolidated financial
statements, the increase in the cost of investment gave rise to the recognition of
goodwill amounting to Ewr8,404,557.

The above was accounted for using business combination achieved in stages.

The fair value of the net assets and the goodwill arising on | January 2009 may be
analysed as follows:

Eur
Intangible assets 94,971
Property, plant and equipment 4,117,527
Deferred tax assels 8,206
Inventories 240,368
Olher receivables 763,917
Current tax asset 14,508
Cash and cash equivalents 156,900
Trade and other payables (1,772,520)
Other financial liabilities (866,791)
Bank overdraft {1,117,620)
Net assets on business combination 01.01.2009 1,639,466
Goodwill arising on business combination on 01.01.2009 8,404,557
Capital contribution by shareholders 10,044,023




Premier Capital p.l.c.
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31 December 2010

30. Business combination achieved in stages (continued)

The fair value of the net assets and the goodwill arising on the previously held
equity interest are as follows:
Fair value of

Year previously hald net assets on
equity interest was Conslideration on business Goodwill
acquired paid combination arlsing
Eur Eur Eur
2005 4,977,871 (794,000) 5,771,871
2007 641,934 211,363 430,671
5,619,805 (682,637) 6,202,442

As a result, the group recognised total goodwill on consolidation amounting lo
Eurl4,606,999 as at 31 December 2009,

As a result of the above, during 2009 the group recognised additional profit for the
year amounting to FEwr8/0,1/6. Revenue for the year 2009 includes
Eurl6,632,297 generated by Premier Restaurants Malta Limited and its jointly
controlled entity, Arcades Limited.

31. Related party disclosures

Premier Capital p.l.c. is the parent company of the undertakings highlighted in note
18.

During the course of the year, the group and the company entered into transactions
with related parties, as set out below,

Group

2010 2009
Related Related
party Total parly Total
activity activity activity activity
Eur Eur Yo Eur Eur %
Other operating income:
Refated party
lransactions with:
Other related parties 11,287 655,678 2 - 384,969
Administrative
BXPBeNnses:
Related party
transactions with:
Other related parties 107,187 5,053,936 2 5,824 4,544,726 =
Finance
cosis:
Ralated party
lransactions with;
Other related parties 13,141 2,193,004 1 13,128 1,138,541 1
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3L Relaked party disclosures (continved)

Holding
200 2008
Relatad Relaled
parly Taotal pary Total
aclivity activiy aehvily ackivity
Eur Evur % Eur Eui %
Reugnine:
Relsted parly
Iransasiions with:
Subaidiary - - - 33B07E 76,5 i
Relaled wndertaking - - - 37,927 5va.00s 10
CHRer opavating inkome;
Related pany
Franseeiinng with:
Ohher mefated paries 11,267 686,673 2 - 344,989
Adgminisiralive
EXDENSESR!
Felalzd parly
transactions with:
Qlher refaled parties 107,187 1,676,127 [ 5.824 1,221 .02% -
Finance
cosla:
Feleted pardy
lrangaciions with:
iher relatsd parlies 1314 2,482,740 1 &0 575 1,087,111 5

Related party transactions [n conneclion with investment ficome and key
managgment personnel are diselosed in notes 7 and 10 cespeetively,

No expense has been recognised during the year arising froun bad and doulsiful in
respect of amounts due by related parties.

The amounds due from/fto related parties at year-end are disclosed in notes 18, 21
and 23, Other than as diselosed in the mespective noles, no guaraniees have been
givan or received,

66



Premier Capital p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2010

3

LS

Operating leases

Group Halding
2010 2009 2610 2008
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Minimum lease payments
Lngder opérating leases
recognised as an expense
for the year 1,502.842 1,606,283 . -

The group entered into operaling lease agreements for [ease of premises and sub-
lease agreements for the lease of land on which the restaurants in the Baltic’s are
situated. The group is commited fo pay monthly paynwents Lo Lhe fessor based on
the sales of each particular restaurant,

Al the end of the reporting period, the group had outstanding commitments under
non-canceliable operating leases, which fail due as foliows:

2010 2009

Eur Eur

Wifthin one year Bo3.134 429,433
Bebyaen two 1o five years 2,414,832 1,654,778
48,244 745,042

Over five yaars

3,356,571 2.820.851

Copmitnmen(s

(5

The subsidiaries operale under a franchise agreement (‘the Agresment’}
dated 19 December 2007 entered into with MeDonald’'s Tnlermnational
Property Company (“the Franchisor’}. The franchise apreement is for a
period of 20 years which allows the respeclive company to use the
MeDomald’s systoim i the restauranes. This franchise agreement stipulates
certain ffnancial and non-Minancial obligations, fnchuding bul nol necessarily
limited to, maintaining cerfain financial rativs, performing markeling and
other aciivities. The subsidiaties are obliped to pay & royvalty fee hased on
their annual el sales of the respective company on an annual basis.

Lpan the expiration of this Agreement, {he Franchisar shall have the right to
purchase sll of the equily tnteresi in the Francinsee’s Me Donald’s
Restawant business (“FMRE™). If the Franchisor elocts to exercise its right
te purchase FMERB, the Purchase mice shall be equal to the Fair Markel
Valtie, a5 defined in the Agreement. In the event that the Franchisor docs not
exereise its right to purchase FMIRRB, it shell have the right to lease or
sublease or purchase, as the case may be, the premises associaled with the
Restourants from Franchizce at fair market rental or fair market price, as the

case may he, , -
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33.

34,

35,

Commitments (continued)

(iiy At the end of the reporting period the group and the company had the
following further capital commitments in respect of property, plant and

equipment:
Group Holding
2010 2009 2010 2009
Eur Eur Eur Eur

Capital expenditure
contracted but
not provided for - 1,149,787 - 704,024
Capital expendilure
aulhonsed but not
contracted for 10,599,432 . . -

Contingent liability

At year-end the company had bank guarantees of Ewr2, 381,498 (2009 -
Eur2, 381,498) in favour of Premier Restaurants Malta Limited.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

At 31 December 2010 and 2009 the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities classified with current assets and current liabilities respectively
approximated their fair values due to the short term maturities of these assets and

liabilities.
The fair values of non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabilities

that are nol measured at fair value, other than unlisted investments that cannot be
reliably measured and that are carried at cost, are not materially different from

their carrying amounts.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3.

- Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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35, Fair value of Mnancisl assets and finarcial liabilities (continued)

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur

2010

Financial assefs at fair
value through profil or loss
Fingncial agsels designated
as al {air value through profit
or lass upan initial recogaition

- lezal Ested eguily instruments
{note 18) G580 DaY - - 923 a7

Financizl Hakilitlos af fair
value through profit or doss
Financial lighililes held

tor irading

- deqivative finangial insfruments

{note 23} - 315,764 - 315,754

The fair values of [inanecial assels with standard terms and conditions and traded
on gctive liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

The Tair value of the company s derivative financial Tnstruments is established by
using a valuation technique. Valuation technigues comprise discounted cash Mow
analysis. The valuation technique 1s consisienl with generally accepted economic
methedologies for pricing financial instruments,

The fair value ol interest rate swaps at the end of the reporting period is

determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves at end of the
reporling period and the eredit risk inlierent in the contract.

36, Finaoeial risk menagerent
The exposures to rislk and (e way risks arise, topgether with the proup’s objectives,
pulicizs and processes for mangging and measwring (hese risks are disclosed in
more detait below.
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36.

Financial risk management (continued)

The objectives, policies and processes for managing financial risks and the
methods used to measure such risks are subject to continual improvement and
development. Where applicable, any significant changes in the group’s exposure to
financial risks or the manner in which the group manages and measures these risks
are disclosed below.

Where possible, the group aims to reduce and control risk concentrations of
financial risk areas when financial instruments with similar characteristics are
influenced in the same way by changes in economic or other factors. The amount
of the risk exposure associated with financial instruments sharing similar
characteristics is disclosed in more detail in the notes to the financial statements.

Credit risk

Financial assets which potentially subject the group to concentrations of credit
risk, consist principally of receivables, investments and cash at bank. Receivables
are presented net of an allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful
debts is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous
experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows,
Investments are acquired after assessing the quality of the relevant investments.
Cash at bank is placed with reliable financial institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which
is net of impairment losses, represents the group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Currency risk

Foreign currency transactions arise when the group buys or sells goods or services
whose price is denominated in foreign currency, borrows or lends funds when the
amounts payable or receivable are denominated in a foreign currency or acquires
or disposes of assets, or incurs or settles liabilities, denominated in foreign

currency.

Foreign currency transactions comprise mainly transactions entered into by the
subsidiaries in Latvian Lats, Estonian Kroon and Lithuanian Litas,

The risk arising from foreign currency transactions entered into by the company’s
subsidiaries in their local currency is mitigated by the fact that such currency has
joined the Exchange Rate Mechanism (ERM [1) as follows:

The Latvian Lats joined the Exchange Rate Mechanism (ERM 11) on 2 May 2003,
and observes a central rate of 0.702804 to the Euro with standard fluctuation
margins of +/- 15%. However, Latvia unilaterally maintains a 1% fluctuation band
around the central rate.
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36,

Financial risk management {continved)
Currency risk foontinued)

The Estonian Kroan jomed the Exchange Rate Mechanizm (ERM I1) on 28 June
2004, and cbserves a central rate of 15.6466 to the Lurs. Estonta unilaterally
matntaing a 0% fluctuation band around the cenfral rate. On t Janvary 2011,
Estoma joined the Euro zomne,

The Lithuanian Litas Joined the Exchange Rate Mechanisin (ERM L) on 28 June
2004, and observes a coenteal rate of 345280 to the BEure with standard Auctuation
marging of -+~ 15%,

[nterest rate risk

The group Dhas taken oul bank and other faciliGes fa [nance is operations as
disclosed in noles 24 and 25. The interest rates thereon and the torms of such
borrowings are disclosed accordingly, The effective interest rate on loans and
receivables, other financial labilities, and bank borrowings are disclosed in notes
24 ang 25 respectively.

The grovup is expesed 10 cash Mow [nfersst rate risk on borrowings and debr
instrnnents carrving a foating interest rate and (o fair value intercst rate risk on
borrowings and deli instruments carrying a flixed interest rate. Investments in
equily instruments are nol exposed to inferess rale risk.

Manzgement moniters the movement in interest rates and, where possible, reacts 10
matertal movements in such rates by adjusting its selling prices or by restructuring
its financing structure. The group uses interest rate swaps to ledpe its exposire
arising from interest rates bank loans.

The carrying amounts of the group’s financial instrumenis carrying a rate of
interest at the reponting date ane disclosed in the notes 1o the financial statements.

Sensitivity analysis

For Minancial instruments issued, the group has used a scpsitivity analysis
technigue thal measures the changg in the cash flows of the group’s financial
insbruments al the reporting dete for hypothetical changes in the relevant marke
risk variables. The sensitivity of profit or loss due to changes in the relevant risk
variables are sel oul below. The amounts penerated from the sensitivily analysis
are Torward-looking estimates of marke! risk assuming certain market conditions,
Actual results in the future may differ materially from those projected results due
to the inherent uncerlainly of global Mnanciat markels. The sensitivity analysis is
for illustrative purposes only, as in practice market rates rarely change i isolation
ang are fikely to be mierdependent.
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36.

Finznetal risk managemeat (continned)
Dterest rede risk (oontinued)

The methods and assumptions vsed are the same as those applied in the previous
reporting penod.

The gstimated change in cash Mows for changes in market interest rates are based
on an imstantancous increase or decrease of SO basis points af the reporting date,
wilh all ather variables remaining constant,

The sensitivity of the relovant risk variables is as follows:

Frofit and Loss

Sensitivity
2040 2000
Eur Eur
Market interesl rates - cash Nlow +f- 2,622 +/- 21,770

The sensitivily on profit or loss in respoct of market intcrest rates is mainiy
attributable 1o hank loans. The sensitivity to interest rates of the company s not
maferiatly different 1 that of the eroup.

Ligenicity rish

The group moniters and manages its visk to a shortape of funds by mainfaining
sufficient cash, by malching the maturity of botl ifs financial assels and Minancial
liabitities and by monitaring the avallabtlity of raising fimds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments.

The group is exposed to liguidity visk in refation to mesting the fulure oblizations
associaled with 1ls financial liabilittes, which compromise principally trade and
other payables, other financial linbiities and interest-bearing bowrowings (refer 10
notes 22, 23, 24 and 25} Pradent lguidity risk nmoagement includes mainaining
sulficient cash and committed credit lines 10 ensure the availabilily of an adequate
amound of funding to meet the group’s ohiigations,

Managerment monitors liquidity risk by means of cazh tlow forccasts on the basis
of cxpected cash Tows over a twelve month period, which is adjusted monthly and
monitored on 4 daily basis, to ensure hat ho addilional {inancing facililies are
expecied to be required over the coming, vear.
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34, Financial risk management (continned)

Liguidity risk {continued;

The following maturity analysis for financial liabilitics shows the remaining
contractual maturitics using the comractual undiscounted ensh Mows on the basis
of the earliest date oo which the group can be reguired Lo pay. The analysis

includes both inleres! and prineipal cash Nows,

Group
an derrand
of within Aftar
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 yeurs b years Teral
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
2090
Nan-detivariva
finzncial Habliitles
Naon-inlerest
bzasing 8528620 - - 8,528,620
Valigide
inslenesl 2P0EME P07 GFF 2 FE0.250 2,870,035 7.731.042 18,297,178
Fiven rate
inslrurnents 1803365 1805368 L TESMZ 4,700 000 26700000 1,775,648
12700858 4810945 4,506 168 4370058 54437042 E0,621.441
2000
Non-garfvative
financial Habifittos
Man-|nierest
besring 3,650,794 - - - 5,690,799
Vafiak!e rale
natrumania FOETEAR 4,157,852 40077223 ATAEETT 12,66 258 %4,560,869
Fized vate
insliusnanis 103,568 103,365 103, 3E6 g otz IT9.016
13BE2,016 4261320 41104801 AEHT 480 12 554,258 38,630,684
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36, Financial risl managemen! (continued)

Hoiding
On demand
orwithin Afiar
1 ydnar 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
20748
Mon-dorivaiivg
fAnancial Nabifitias
haor-intereat
haring 1,930, W33 - - - 1,860,060
Yariable 1ate
instiuments 2,208,156 2807577 2,730,236 2,670,035 TIE142 18,217.275
Fixed rale
DS enls 1893368 1,803,288 1,768 512 1.7C0000 26, 700000  33¥TE548
5,021,783 441094 4,506,165 4 47208938 34431142 53942083
ong
Nan-varivative
Fiancial fahifilas
Nen-iramst
bEanng YBB,Z2tG - TE8. 218
Variakla rate
insinemenis 4,B15287 3,94525t 3850914 3785477 12,495,601 23, £61.630
Flued rate
Etrments 103,358 108,368 103,368 8452 103,368 AE2, 384
0, 7G6.871  £021810 3854 ZEF 3882 469 12,506,269 30,132,230

Derivative financial instriments

The company does nat use derivative financial instriments for speculalive

DL ases.

The company uses interest rate swaps 0 convert a proportion of its floating rate

debl o Mxed rales.

During the year vnder review and during the prior year, the company Jdid not
designaie mry of its derivative financial insinaments in a hedging relationship for

accounting purposes.
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36,

37,

Financial risk management {continned)
Capiial risk monagement

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safemeard i1s ability o
continug as 2 going coneern ard to maximise the return to stakehoeldess through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the group consists of Hems presentad within equity in the
atatement of financial position.

The company’s directors manage the capital structure and imake adjustments to it,
in Night of changes in economic conditions. The capital structure is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Based on recommicndations of the dircctors, the company balances
its averall capital stucture through new share ssoes as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemplion of existing debt.

The group’s overall sirategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

Comparative figures

Certain comparatives Tigures have been reclassified in accordance with this year's
presentation of the financial slalements. These reclessifications were made in cost
of sales, distribution expenses and administrative expenses due 1o sonie chanpes
in classifications in 2010, Eur833,728 has been reclassitied from distribution
expenses to cost of sales, whercas B2 247 has been reclassified from
distribution expenses Lo administrative expenses.
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Premier Capital p.l.c.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Premier Capital p.l.c. and its group set out
on pages ten to seventy-five, which comprise the statements of financial position of the company and
the group as at 31 December 2010, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the company and the group for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statemenis

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities on page five, the directors of the
company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the
requirements of the Companies Act (Chap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
company’s and the group’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control of the company and the group. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion. :
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Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Uimited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
company and its group as at 31 December 2010 and of the company’s and its group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act (Chap. 386).

.
4;-‘3’1_’('{'-

Paul Darmanin as Principal
in the name and on behalf of
DELOITTE

Registered auditor

29 April 2011
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